BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH

To:

TELEPHONE:

020 8464 3333

DIRECT LINE:
FAX:

020 8461 7566
020 8290 0608

CONTACT: Lisa Thornley
lisa.thornley@bromley.gov.uk

DATE: 9 February 2021

Members of the
PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE NO. 2
Councillor Peter Dean (Chairman)
Councillor Michael Turner (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Mark Brock, Nicky Dykes, Simon Fawthrop, Colin Hitchins, Josh King,
Neil Reddin FCCA and Richard Scoates
A meeting of the Plans Sub-Committee No. 2 will be held on
THURSDAY 18 FEBRUARY 2021 AT 6.00 PM
PLEASE NOTE: This is a ‘virtual meeting’ and members of the press and public
can see and hear the Sub-Committee by visiting the following page on the
Council’s website –
https://www.bromley.gov.uk/councilmeetingslive
Live streaming will commence shortly before the meeting starts.
MARK BOWEN
Director of Corporate Services

Members of the public can speak at Plans Sub-Committee meetings on planning reports,
contravention reports or tree preservation orders. To do so, you must have
 already written to the Council expressing your view on the particular matter, and
 indicated your wish to speak by contacting the Democratic Services team by no later than
10.00am on the working day before the date of the meeting.
These public contributions will be at the discretion of the Chairman. They will normally be limited to
two speakers per proposal (one for and one against), each with three minutes to put their view
across.

To register to speak please e-mail lisa.thornley@bromley.gov.uk
(telephone: 020 8461 7566) or committee.services@bromley.gov.uk

---------------------------------If you have further enquiries or need further information on the content
of any of the applications being considered at this meeting, please
contact our Planning Division on 020 8313 4956 or e-mail
planning@bromley.gov.uk
Information on the outline decisions taken will usually be available on
our website (see below) within a day of the meeting.

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from
http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

AGENDA
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 10 DECEMBER 2020
(Pages 1 - 8)

4

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Report
No.

Page
No.

Ward

Application Number and Address

4.1

West Wickham

9 - 30

(20/02367/FULL1) - 9 Copse Avenue, West
Wickham, BR4 9NL

4.2

Petts Wood and Knoll

31 - 42

(20/04906/FULL6) - 77 Lynwood Grove,
Orpington, BR6 0BQ

5

CONTRAVENTIONS AND OTHER ISSUES

Report
No.

Ward

Page
No.

Application Number and Address

Page
No.

Application Number and Address

NO REPORTS
6
Report
No.

TREE PRESERVATION ORDERS
Ward
NO REPORTS
The Council’s Local Planning Protocol and Code of Conduct sets out how planning applications are
dealt with in Bromley.

Agenda Item 3
PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE NO. 2
Minutes of the meeting held at 6.00 pm on 10 December 2020
Present:
Councillor Peter Dean (Chairman)
Councillor Michael Turner (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Mark Brock, Nicky Dykes, Simon Fawthrop,
Colin Hitchins, Josh King, Neil Reddin FCCA and Richard Scoates
Also Present:
Councillors Kira Gabbert

10

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

All Members were present.
11

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Neil Reddin declared a non-prejudicial interest in Item 4.3 and Councillor
Simon Fawthrop declared a non-prejudicial interest in Items 4.5 and 4.16.
12

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 15 OCTOBER 2020

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 202 be confirmed and
signed as a correct record.
13

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

13.1
HAYES AND CONEY HALL

(18/03074/RECON) - 8 Speldhurst Close, Bromley
BR2 9DT
Description of application – Minor material
amendment to planning permission 18/03074/FULL6
granted for 'ground floor rear and side and first floor
rear extension with elevational alterations' to allow an
increase in height.
Oral representations in objection to the application
were received at the meeting.
Members having considered the report, objections
and representations, RESOLVED that THE
APPLICATION BE DEFERRED, without prejudice to
any future consideration, TO RESOLVE THE
OVERHANGING ROOF ISSUE.
32

Page 1

Plans Sub-Committee No. 2
10 December 2020

13.2
CHELSFIELD AND PRATTS
BOTTOM

(20/00513/FULL1) - 46 Worlds End Lane, Orpington
BR6 6AG
Description of application – A part single and part two
storey Vicarage to the rear of the existing vicarage
(with a new access/ entrance at Moat Close).
THIS REPORT WAS WITHDRAWN BY THE
APPLICANT.

13.3
ORPINGTON

(20/00589/FULL1) - St Olave's Grammar School ,
Goddington Lane, Orpington BR6 9SH
Partial demolition, extension and refurbishment of
existing building "Thirdsden Halls" including;
demolition of existing rear section and attached
garages, erection of single storey rear extension
(replacing existing rear section), internal layout
alterations, elevational alterations, erection of fencing
and gates and formation of accessible ramp,
installation of air source heat pump (NW elevation).
Change of use from Class D2 Leisure (community
Scout Hut) to mixed use Class D1 Education and D2
Leisure (community). (Amended plans - Site Location
Plan).
Oral representations in support of the application were
received at the meeting.
Members having considered the report, objections
and representations, RESOLVED that PERMISSION
be GRANTED as recommended, subject to the
conditions and informatives set out in the report of the
Assistant Director, (Planning and Building Control).

13.4
DARWIN
CONSERVATION AREA

(20/01046/FULL1) - Parkside, Luxted Road, Downe
BR6 7JS
Description of application - Subdivision of residential
plot and erection of a detached dwellinghouse with
curtilage and parking area. (Amended plans - red
edging).
Oral representations in support of the application were
received at the meeting.
Ward Member, Councillor Richard Scoates,
acknowledged that the design of the proposed
development was sympathetic to the houses in the
33

Page 2

Plans Sub-Committee No. 2
10 December 2020
village. However, he referred to the Bromley Local
Plan whereby openness of the green belt was
described as an ‘absence of development’, and his
view was that this land was open and undeveloped
and any form of development would be detrimental
and would cause harm to the openness of this stretch
of green belt. He also referred to page 75 of the
report that showed the nucleus of the village ending at
‘Snow Cottage’ and described the neighbourhood up
to Luxted Road and his view was that the proposed
development was not limited infilling but would expand
the nucleus of the village and that infilling did not
justify the application and housing targets should not
overrule the deterioration of the green belt and he
objected to the application.
Councillor Simon Fawthrop said if the proposed
development were to go ahead there would be a
degradation of the openness of the green belt and
would therefore be a breach of green belt and garden
policy of the Bromley Local Plan and he also objected
to the application.
Members having considered the report, objections
and representations, RESOLVED that PERMISSION
BE REFUSED, against officers recommendation for
the following reason:1. The subdivision of a residential garden to introduce
a new dwelling in Downe Village Conservation Area
would constitute inappropriate development in the
Green Belt, resulting in a greater impact and further
deterioration on openness at this prominent and open
village location, contrary to NPPF paragraph 11(d),
143, 144, 145, London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.16 and
Bromley Local Plan Policies 4, 37 and 49.
13.5
BICKLEY

(20/01398/FULL1) - St Michaels, Bickley Park
Road, Bickley, Bromley BR1 2BE
Description of application – Demolition of existing
dwelling and construction of a part one/two storey
building with accommodation in roofspace to provide 8
residential flats (5 no. two bedroom, 2 no. one
bedroom and 1 no. three bedroom).Retained vehicular
access with front boundary wall; Formation of car
parking area at front comprising 6 no. car parking
spaces; Refuse and recycling and cycle storage with
hard and soft landscaping across the site, including
boundary enclosures to side and rear.

34

Page 3

Plans Sub-Committee No. 2
10 December 2020

Oral representations in objection to the application
were received. Oral representations from Ward
Member, Councillor Kira Gabbert in objection to the
application were received at the meeting and she
spoke on behalf of her fellow Ward Members.
Whilst Councillor Gabbert appreciated the need for
housing she described the neighbourhood of single
residential dwellings that benefitted from the finest
Church in the Borough, St George’s Church. She
considered the proposed development to be an
inappropriate, cramped and overbearing development
in the Area of Special Character, out of character with
the surrounding area and eight dwellings would set a
precedent and her preference was for a reduced
number of flats that offered affordable ownership and
she objected to the application.
The Vice Chairman agreed with Councillor Gabbert
and said that six parking spaces would be insufficient
on Bickley Park Road.
Councillor Fawthrop’s view was that the proposed
development was not in keeping with the surrounding
area and family houses would be more appropriate.
Members having considered the report, objections
and representations, RESOLVED that PERMISSION
BE REFUSED, against officers recommendation for
the following reason:1. The proposal, by reason of its design and scale
would constitute overdevelopment and loss of family
housing in Bickley Park Area of Special Residential
Character, out of character and out of keeping with its
surrounding area, contrary to Policies 4, 37 and 44
and Section 3 guidelines for ASRC in the Bromley
Local Plan.
13.6
DARWIN

(20/01510/FULL1) - Eden Fields, Farthing Street,
Downe, Orpington BR6 7JB
Description of application – Demolition of existing
stables buildings and erection of detached single
storey three bedroom dwelling.
Oral representations in support of the application were
received at the meeting.

35

Page 4

Plans Sub-Committee No. 2
10 December 2020
Members having considered the report, objection and
representations, RESOLVED that PERMISSION be
GRANTED as recommended, subject to the
conditions and informative set out in the report of the
Assistant Director, (Planning and Building Control).
13.7
COPERS COPE

(20/01651/FULL1) - 5-8a St Clare Court, Foxgrove
Avenue, Beckenham BR3 5BG
Description of application - Conversion of existing roof
space into 2 bedroom self-contained flat. Alterations
to existing roof to include raising of ridge height, small
front dormer window with two rooflights to front
elevation. Two pitched rear dormer windows with one
rear rooflight in the rear elevation and one rooflight in
the flank elevation.
Revised plans had been received on 3 December
2020.
Members having considered the report and
objections, RESOLVED that PERMISSION be
GRANTED as recommended, subject to the
conditions and informatives set out in the report of the
Assistant Director, (Planning and Building Control).

13.8
COPERS COPE

(20/02385/FULL1) - 1-4 St Clare Court, Foxgrove
Avenue, Beckenham BR3 5BG
Description of application – Conversion of existing
roof space into 2 bedroom self-contained flat.
Alterations to existing roof to include small front
dormer window with two rooflights to front elevation.
Part removal of existing two rear chimneys and
construction of two pitched rear dormer windows with
one rear rooflight. Flat roof with rooflight and one
rooflight to left flank elevation.
Members having considered the report and
objections, RESOLVED that PERMISSION be
GRANTED as recommended, subject to the
conditions and informatives set out in the report of the
Assistant Director, (Planning and Building Control).

13.9
CHELSFIELD AND PRATTS
BOTTOM

(20/02412/FULL6) - Mountview, Orchard Road,
Pratts Bottom, Orpington BR6 7NS
Description of application – Demolition of existing
conservatory, garage and side chimney stack. Single
storey front extension, part one/two storey side/rear

36

Page 5

Plans Sub-Committee No. 2
10 December 2020
extensions, alterations to front porch, front roof slope
and elevational alterations
Oral representations in support of the application were
received at the meeting. Further objections to the
application had been received and circulated to
Members.
Members having considered the report, objections
and representations, RESOLVED that PERMISSION
be GRANTED as recommended, subject to the
conditions set out in the report of the Assistant
Director, (Planning and Building Control) with two
further condition to read:“7. Prior to the above ground works of the building,
details of landscaping and parking spaces shall be
submitted and approved the Local Planning Authority
in writing. The approved development shall be
implemented prior to the occupation and maintained
during the lifetime of the development.
REASON: In the interest of biodiversity and to ensure
that a satisfactory standard of visual amenity and
parking provision are provided and maintained.”
13.10
BROMLEY TOWN

(20/02786/FULL6) - 52 Farnaby Road, Bromley
BR1 4BJ
Description of application – Hip to gable loft
conversion with two rear dormers and front rooflights
(part retrospective).
An objection had been received from a neighbour and
circulated to Members.
Members having considered the report and
objections, RESOLVED that PERMISSION be
GRANTED as recommended, subject to the
conditions and informative set out in the report of the
Assistant Director, (Planning and Building Control).

13.11
PETTS WOOD AND KNOLL

(20/03038/PLUD) - 25 Silverdale Road, Petts Wood,
Orpington BR5 1NH
Description of application – Loft conversion with set
back gable, barn hip & rear dormer and elevational
alterations (Proposed Lawful Development
Certificate).

37

Page 6

Plans Sub-Committee No. 2
10 December 2020
Oral representations in support of the application were
received at the meeting. A replacement report had
been published on the Council’s website on 3
December 2020.
Members having considered the report and
representations, RESOLVED that the PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT is LAWFUL as recommended, for
the reason and subject to informative set out in the
report of the Assistant Director, (Planning and Building
Control).
13.12
PETTS WOOD AND KNOLL

(20/03136/PLUD) - 13 Silverdale Road, Petts Wood,
Orpington BR5 1NH
Description of application – Loft conversion and roof
alterations comprising of partial gable extension and
rear dormer and elevational alterations - materials to
match existing.
Members having considered the report, RESOLVED
that the PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT is LAWFUL
as recommended, for the reason set out in the report
of the Assistant Director, (Planning and Building
Control).

13.13
PETTS WOOD AND KNOLL

(20/03262/PLUD) - 14 Silverdale Road, Petts Wood,
Orpington BR5 1NJ
Description of application – Part hip to gable loft
conversion and rear dormer LAWFUL
DEVELOPMENT CERTIFICATE (PROPOSED).
Members having considered the report, RESOLVED
that the PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT is LAWFUL
as recommended, for the reason set out in the report
of the Assistant Director, (Planning and Building
Control).

13.14
KELSEY AND EDEN PARK

(20/03288/FULL1) - 21 Langley Road, Beckenham
BR3 4AE
Description of application – The creation of an 8 room
HMO at 21 Langley Road and elevational alterations.
Members having considered the report, RESOLVED
that PERMISSION be GRANTED as recommended,
subject to the conditions set out in the report of the
Assistant Director, (Planning and Building Control).

38

Page 7

Plans Sub-Committee No. 2
10 December 2020

13.15
PENGE AND CATOR

(20/03523/TELCOM) - Land Adjacent To
Community Vision Children And Family Centre,
Woodbine Grove/Oakfield Road, Penge, London
Description of application – Proposed 15m high
telecommunications monopole with 6 antennas,
wraparound equipment cabinet at base and
associated ancillary works - all to be sited on verge
fronting Oakfield Road (56 DAY CONSULTATION BY
H3G LIMITED REGARDING THE NEED FOR
APPROVAL OF SITING AND APPEARANCE OF
TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEVELOPMENT)
(APPLICATION AMENDED ON 11/11/2020 TO
REDUCE HEIGHT OF MAST FROM 18M TO 15M).
Comments from the three Ward Members of Penge
and Cator Ward and further objections to the
application had been received and circulated to
Members.
Members having considered the report and
objections, RESOLVED that PRIOR APPROVAL
REQUIRED be GRANTED as recommended, subject
to conditions set out in the report of the Assistant
Director, (Planning and Building Control).

13.16
PETTS WOOD AND KNOLL

(20/03613/PLUD) - 45 Priory Avenue, Petts Wood,
Orpington BR5 1JE
Description of application – Roof alterations to include
a partial hip to half gable roof extension and rear
dormer extension. (Proposed lawful development
certificate).
Oral representations in support of the application were
received at the meeting.
Members having considered the report and
representations, RESOLVED that the PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT is LAWFUL as recommended, for
the reason set out in the report of the Assistant
Director, (Planning and Building Control).

The meeting ended at 7.20 pm

Chairman

39

Page 8

Agenda Item 4.1
Committee
Date
Address
Application
Number
Ward
Proposal

Applicant
Miss Kate Bennett

18.02.2021
9 Copse Avenue
West Wickham
BR4 9NL
20/02367/FULL1

Officer - Louisa Bruce

West Wickham
Demolition of existing bungalow and construction of 2 x 3 bedroom
semi-detached properties with cycle and bin storage, paved
driveways, steps leading down to each rear garden. Covered
pathway with roof to side of Plot 9 with new brick wall (adjacent to
No. 33 Boleyn Gardens). Existing vehicular crossover widened to
Plot 9a and erection of carport with mansard roof to the side of new
property, new brick wall (adjacent to No. 11 Copse Avenue).
Agent

9 Copse Avenue
West Wickham
BR4 9NL

Reason for referral to
committee
Call-In

RECOMMENDATION

Councillor call in
Yes

Application Permitted

KEY DESIGNATIONS
Areas of Archeological Significance
Biggin Hill Safeguarding Area
London City Airport Safeguarding
Open Space Deficiency
Smoke Control SCA 51

Page 9

Residential Use – See Affordable housing section for full breakdown including
habitable rooms
Number of bedrooms per unit
1

2

3

Market

2

Affordable (shared
ownership)

0

Affordable
rent)

0

(social

Total

Total / Payment in lieu

2

Vehicle parking

Standard car spaces
Disabled car spaces
Cycle
Representation
summary

Existing number of Total
proposed Difference
spaces
including
spaces spaces
retained
(+ or -)
2
2
+2
0
0
0
0
4
+4

in

Neighbours were notified of the development on the 3 rd August
2020.

Total number of responses
Number in support
Number of objections

1

4 Plus

5
1
4

SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION
 The development would not result in a harmful impact on the character and
appearance of the area
 The development would not adversely affect the amenities of neighbouring
residential properties

2.0

Location

2.1

The application relates to a single storey detached bungalow located on the
southern side of Copse Avenue, West Wickham. The property is located on
the corner of Copse Avenue and Boleyn Gardens between No.33 Boleyn
Gardens and No.11 Copse Avenue. The property is not listed and does not lie
within any area of special designation.

Page 10

3.0

PROPOSAL

3.1

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing bungalow
(No.9 Copse Avenue) and the construction of 2 x 3 bedroom semi-detached
properties with cycle and bin storage, paved driveways and steps leading to
each rear garden. A new covered pathway with mansard roof to the side of
Plot 9 and new brick wall (adjacent to No. 33 Boleyn Gardens). Existing
vehicular crossover widened and erection of carport to the side of Plot 9a with
new brick wall (adjacent to No. 11 Copse Avenue).
A new dropped kerb was originally proposed to Plot 9 to accommodate two
off-street car parking spaces however following objections from the Street
Trees and Highways Officer’s the new dropped kerb was dropped from the
proposal and both properties will now use the existing dropped kerb to
Plot 9a to accommodate four communal car parking spaces, cycle and
refuse storage.
Revised Plans were received on 27th January 2021 which removed the
proposed vehicular crossover to Plot 9, along with the fence between the two
properties to allow for communal parking and bin and cycle storage facilities
were adjusted to provide equal provision for each property.

3.2

3.3

3.4

The proposed semi-detached properties will occupy broadly the same
footprint of the existing bungalow. The indicative front elevation design
depicts a modern style design approach.





The submission was supported by the following documents:
Application form
Existing and proposed plans and elevations
Site location and block plans
Site photos

Page 11







Topographical Survey
Landscaping Plan
Materials Schedule & Specification
Drainage Report
Micro Drainage Summary

4.0

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.1

PREAPP/19/00120 - Demolition of existing bungalow and construction of 2
no. two storey semi-detached properties.
Under planning application ref: 83/00031 planning permission was granted for
a single storey side extension.

4.2

5.0

CONSULTATION SUMMARY
A)

STATUTORY
Highways – Acceptable
No objections
According to Transport for London’s (TfL) Planning Information Database the
site has a PTAL rating of ZERO (on a scale of 1 - 6, where 6 is themost
accessible).
The proposed development would comprise the demolition of the existing
bungalow and the construction of 2 no two storey semi-detached 3 bed houses.
Revised plan acceptable.

Page 12

Drainage – Acceptable
No objections subject to condition
This site is at high risk from surface water flooding. Thames Water must be
consulted in this instance to check their sewers capacity and also check if
they have recorded any past flooding in the area. As for the submitted
"Drainage Strategy Report" carried out by RCD Consultants Ltd with Ref No.
1111-1184 9 Rev A dated 20/01/2020 I note the applicant will use porous
paving to restrict surface water run-off to 2l/s for all events including the 1 in
100
year
plus
climate
which
I
consider
acceptable.
CONDITION: The Drainage Strategy Report carried out by RCD
Consultants Ltd with Ref No. 1111-1184 9 Rev A dated 20/01/2020 hereby
permitted shall be implemented in full accordance with the approved details
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
REASON: In order to comply with Policy 5.13 of the London Plan and
reduce the impact of flooding both to and from the proposed development
and third parties.

to

Environmental Health (Pollution) – Acceptable
I have considered the above and have no objections within the grounds of
consideration.
No development shall commence on site until such time as a Construction
Management Plan, in accordance with the Control of Pollution and Noise
from Demolition and Construction Sites Code of Practice 2017 (available on
the Bromley web site) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The plan shall include, but is not limited to, the
following:a)
Dust mitigation and management measures.
b)
The location and operation of plant and wheel washing
facilities
c)
Measures to control demolition and construction noise
including, where applicable, noise trigger levels &
monitoring
d)
Details of construction traffic movements including
cumulative impacts which shall demonstrate the following:Rationalise travel and traffic routes to and from the site as well as within the
site.
Provide full details of the number and time of construction vehicle trips to the
site with the intention and aim of reducing the impact of construction related
activity.
Measures to deal with safe pedestrian movement.
e)
Hours of operation
f)
Details of a complaints procedure with a designated person on site
responsible for complaint handling
I would recommend that the following informative is attached:

Page 13

If during the works on site any suspected contamination is encountered,
Environmental Health should be contacted immediately. The contamination
shall be fully assessed and an appropriate remediation scheme submitted to
the Local Authority for approval in writing.
Thames Water comments – Acceptable
Waste Comments
With the information provided Thames Water has been unable to determine
the waste water infrastructure needs of this application. Thames Water has
contacted the developer in an attempt to obtain this information and agree a
position for SURFACE WATER drainage, but have been unable to do so in
the time available and as such Thames Water request that the following
condition be added to any planning permission.
“No development shall be occupied until confirmation has been provided that
either:- 1. Capacity exists off site to serve the development or 2. A
development and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with the Local
Authority in consultation with Thames Water. Where a development and
infrastructure phasing plan is agreed, no occupation shall take place other
than in accordance with the agreed development and infrastructure phasing
plan. Or 3. All wastewater network upgrades required to accommodate the
additional flows from the development have been completed. Reason Network reinforcement works may be required to accommodate the proposed
development. Any reinforcement works identified will be necessary in order to
avoid flooding and/or potential pollution incidents. The developer can request
information to support the discharge of this condition by visiting the Thames
Water website at thameswater.co.uk/preplanning. Should the Local Planning
Authority consider the above recommendation inappropriate or are unable to
include it in the decision notice, it is important that the Local Planning
Authority liaises with Thames Water Development Planning Department
(telephone 0203 577 9998) prior to the planning application approval.
Thames Water would advise that with regard to FOUL WATER sewerage
network infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection to the
above planning application, based on the information provided.
Water Comments
There are water mains crossing or close to your development. Thames Water
do NOT permit the building over or construction within 3m of water mains. If
you're planning significant works near our mains (within 3m) we’ll need to
check that your development doesn’t reduce capacity, limit repair or
maintenance activities during and after construction, or inhibit the services we
provide in any other way. The applicant is advised to read our guide working
near or diverting our pipes.
If you are planning on using mains water for construction purposes, it’s
important you let Thames Water know before you start using it, to avoid

Page 14

potential fines for improper usage. More information and how to apply can be
found online at thameswater.co.uk/buildingwater.
On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise that with
regard to water network and water treatment infrastructure capacity, we would
not have any objection to the above planning application. Thames Water
recommends the following informative be attached to this planning
permission. Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum
pressure of 10m head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the
point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take
account of this minimum pressure in the design of the proposed development.
Supplementary Comments
Wastewater: Based on the information supplied; Foul discharge will be going
into sewer on Copse Ave. - Discharge within sewer threshold Surface Water
discharge will also be Copse Ave. but there isn't information on drainage flow
rates.
Environment Agency – Acceptable
We have assessed this application and it is covered by our Flood risk
standing advice. This means you do not have to consult us directly and can
use our standing advice to manage flood risk for this planning application.
Despite not being in a Flood Zone from the neighbour comments it seems a
surface water flood issue only although they refer to a pond and underground
natural springs. If you have any enquiries regarding source of the flooding as
sometimes its assumed a river is flowing underground you can refer them to
the online main river map. The nearest main river The Beck is 65 from the site
location.
Street Trees – Unacceptable
There are two street trees to the front of the property. The root protection area
afforded to them will prevent the creation/widening of the crossover at the
property.
It is our recommendation the application should be refused on these grounds.
If the application is successful the crossover will be refused when they apply
for it with Highways.
B)

Local Groups
West Wickham Residents Association
The Association understands and generally supports the need for new
residential property in the Town but has concerns about the current proposal.
Specifically, we object on the following grounds:-

Page 15



The size of the rear gardens, which are only an average of 8 metres deep for
No. 9 and 7 metres deep for No.9a, falls well below recommended standards
and consequently results in a cramped overdevelopment of the site out of
keeping with the area.



Apparently, the applicants are aware that the existing property has been
flooded in the past and consequently have commissioned a drainage report.
This has found that the site is not suitable for drainage to soakaways and
suggests draining into a neighbouring stream. However, no such drainage
seems to be proposed. At present most of the garden is laid to lawn and flower
beds yet still becomes flooded and we believe that covering the garden with so
called porous paving will make drainage considerably worse resulting in run off
into the road. There is photographic evidence of this happening on many
occasions in the past so providing for a 1 in 100 year event will not be adequate.

C)

Adjoining Occupiers (addressed in paragraphs 7.6 & 7.8)



Been advised by the owners of their intention to re-develop the property and
have no objections to the plans. However we have lived here for 33yrs and
have witnessed the bungalow flood on three separate occasions. The bungalow
was built on a pond served by natural underground springs. Our concern is that
the new development could have a detrimental impact on surrounding
properties from flash flooding or sustained rainfall.



Do not object to the development providing adequate flood protection is
employed for both above and underground water.
Currently both the front and back gardens of No.9 are mostly grass and flowers
beds and provide a natural soakaway which fails to cope with the volume of
water when these events occur.



6. 0

POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

6.1

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) sets
out that in considering and determining applications for planning
permission the local planning authority must have regard to:
(a)
(b)
(c)

the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the
application,
any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application,
and
any other material considerations.

6.2

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) makes it
clear that any determination under the planning acts must be made in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

6.3

The National Planning Policy Framework was published on 24 July 2018 and
updated on 19 February 2019.

Page 16

6.4

The development plan for Bromley comprises the Bromley Local Plan (Jan
2019), the London Plan (March 2016) and the Draft London Plan (December
2020). The NPPF does not change the legal status of the development plan.

6.5

An updated ‘Intend to Publish’ version of draft London Plan – entitled
Publication London Plan December 2020 - was published on 21 December
2020. This version of the draft plan includes changes made by the Mayor in
response to a number of Directed Changes made by the SoS in March
and December 2020. The relevant documents are available on the
Mayor’s website - https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/londonplan/new-london-plan/publication-london-plan

6.6

The draft new London Plan (December 2020) is a material consideration in
the determination of this planning application. Paragraph 48 of the NPPF
states that decision makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging
plans according to: (1) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan; (2) the
extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies in the
emerging plan; and (3) the degree of consistency of relevant policies to the
policies in the Framework.

6.7

The draft New London Plan is at a very advanced stage; in a Written
Ministerial Statement dated 15/12/2020, the SoS indicated that he expects
to agree the London Plan with the Mayor early in the new year (early 2021).

6.8

The London Assembly considered the draft new London Plan at a plenary
meeting on 6 February 2020 and did not exercise their power to veto the plan.

6.9

Prior to issuing further Directed Changes in December 2020, the SoS (in two
SoS call-in appeals in the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea,
appeal ref: APP/C5690/W/18/3205926; and the London Borough of
Hounslow, appeal ref: APP/G6100/V/19/3226914) had established that the
draft London Plan policies are capable of having significant weight where
they weren’t subject to Directed Changes.

6.10

Considering this information against paragraph 48 of the NPPF, the draft new
London Plan (December 2020 ‘Intend to Publish’ version) is considered to
have very significant weight where there are no Directed Changes to
policies; and significant weight where there are Directed Changes to policies.
Taking this into account, the draft new London Plan policies should be
used to determine this planning application, alongside policies in the
adopted Local Plan and adopted London Plan. Where there is conflict
between the policies in the draft new London Plan and the policies in the
adopted Development Plan, the draft new London Plan should generally be
given primacy although this may vary from case to case.

6.11

Upon adoption of the new London Plan, it will become the most up-to-date
Development Plan Document for the London Borough of Bromley, and
therefore, in accordance with section 38(5) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act
2004, “if to any extent a policy contained in a development
plan for an area conflicts with another policy in the development plan the conflict

Page 17

must be resolved in favour of the policy which is
document to become part of the development plan.”
6.12

contained in the last

The application falls to be determined in accordance with the following
policies:

The London Plan (2016)
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.8
3.9
5.1
5.2
5.3
5.7
5.10
5.11
5.12
5.13
5.14
5.15
5.16
5.17
5.18
5.21
6.3
6.5
6.9
6.12
6.13
7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5
7.6
7.14
7.15
7.21
8.3

Increasing Housing Supply
Optimising Housing Potential Page 123
Quality and Design of Housing Developments
Housing Choice
Mixed and Balanced Communities
Climate change mitigation
Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
Sustainable Design and Construction
Renewable Energy
Urban Greening
Green Roofs and Development Site Environs
Flood Risk Management
Sustainable Drainage
Water quality and wastewater Infrastructure
Water use and supplies
Waste self-sufficiency
Waste capacity
Construction, excavation and demolition waste
Contaminated land
Assessing Effects of Development on Transport Capacity
Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
Cycling
Road Network Capacity
Parking
Lifetime Neighbourhoods
An Inclusive Environment
Designing Out Crime
Local Character
Public Realm
Architecture
Improving Air Quality
Reducing and Managing Noise, Improving and Enhancing the Acoustic
Environment and Promoting Appropriate Soundscapes
Trees and Woodlands
Community Infrastructure Levy

Draft London Plan
D1
D3
D4
D5

London's form and characteristics
Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
Delivering good design
Inclusive design

Page 18

D6
D7
D11
D12
D13
D14
H1
H2
H5
H8
H9
H10
G5
G7
SI1
SI4
SI5
SI7
SI12
SI13
T2
T3
T4
T5
T6
T6.1
T7

Housing quality and standards
Accessible housing
Safety, security and resilience to emergency
Fire safety
Agent of change
Noise
Increasing Housing Supply
Small sites
Threshold Approach to application
Loss of existing housing and estate redevelopment Page
Ensuring the best use of stock
Housing Size Mix
Urban greening
Trees and woodlands
Improving air quality
Managing heat risk
Water infrastructure
Reducing waste and supporting the circular economy
Flood risk management
Sustainable drainage
Healthy Streets
Transport capacity, connectivity and safeguarding
Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
Cycling
Car parking
Residential Parking
Deliveries, servicing and construction

Bromley Local Plan (2019)
1
4
6
8
9
26
30
32
33
37
73
112
113
115
116
117
118
119
120
122

Housing supply
Housing design
Residential extensions
Side Space
Residential conversions
Health and wellbeing
Parking
Road Safety
Access for All
General design of development
Development and Trees
Planning for Sustainable Waste management
Waste Management in New Development
Reducing flood risk
Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS)
Water and Wastewater Infrastructure Capacity
Contaminated Land
Noise Pollution
Air Quality
Light Pollution

Page 19

123
124
6.16

Sustainable Design and Construction
Carbon dioxide reduction, Decentralise Energy networks and Renewable
Energy
Supplementary Guidance Housing: Supplementary Planning Guidance.
(March 2016) Technical housing standards - Nationally Described Space
Standard (March 2015)

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Bromley's SPG No.1 - General Design Principles
Bromley's SPG No.2 - Residential Design Guidance
7.0

ASSESSMENT

7.1

Principle of Development – Acceptable

7.1.2 The NPPF (2019) sets out in paragraph 11 a presumption in favour of
sustainable development.
7.1.3 The current position in respect of Bromley's Five Year Housing Land Supply
(FYHLS) was agreed at Development Control Committee on 24th September
2020. The current position is that the FYHLS (covering the period 2020/21 to
2024/25) is 2,690 units, or 3.31 years supply. This is acknowledged as a
significant undersupply and for the purposes of assessing relevant planning
applications means that the presumption in favour of sustainable
development will apply.
7.1.4 The NPPF (2019) sets out in paragraph 11 a presumption in favour of
sustainable . In terms of decision-making, the document states that where a
development accords with an up to date local plan, applications should
be
approved without delay. Where a plan is out of date, permission should be
granted unless the application of policies in the Framework that protect
areas or assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing
the development proposed; or any adverse impacts of doing so would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed
against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole.
7.1.5

According to paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF in the absence of a 5 year
Housing Land Supply the Council should regard the Development Plan
Policies for the supply of housing including Policy 1 Housing Supply of the
Bromley Local Plan as being 'out of date'. In accordance with paragraph
11(d), for decision taking this means where there are no relevant
development plan policies or the policies which are most important for
determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless: i) the
application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or ii) any adverse impacts of doing so would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed
against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

Page 20

7.1.6 Policy 3.3 Increasing housing supply, Policy 3.4 Optimising housing potential
and Policy 3.8 Housing choice in the London Plan generally encourage the
provision of redevelopment in previously developed residential areas provided
that it is designed to complement the character of surrounding developments,
the design and layout make suitable residential accommodation,
and
it
provides for garden and amenity space.
7.1.7 Policies including 3.3 of The London Plan 2016 and Policy 1 of the Bromley
Local Plan have the same objectives. The London Plan's minimum target for
Bromley is to deliver 641 new homes per year until 2025. The new/intended
to published London Plan's minimum target for Bromley will be increased to
774 new homes a year.
7.1.8 This application includes the provision of one additional residential unit, which
would represent a minor contribution to the supply of housing within the
Borough. This aspect of the proposal will be considered in the overall
planning balance set out in the conclusion of the report having regard to the
presumption in favour of sustainable development.
7.1.9 The site is located within a residential area and the demolition of the existing
bungalow and its replacement with two semi-detached properties would be
acceptable in principle provided proposal would not harm neighbouring
residential amenity, would provide residential accommodation of a high
quality, would not result in on and off street parking that would cause
unsafe or inconvenient road conditions, would not impact detrimentally on the
character and appearance of the area, would not have a detrimental impact
on house choice in the locality and would incorporate safe and secure
access to each dwelling.
7.1.10 Any adverse impact on neighbouring amenity, car/cycle parking and traffic
implications, sustainable design and energy, community safety, refuse
arrangements, trees and visual amenity will need to be addressed.
7.2

Design – Acceptable

7.2.1 Design is a key consideration in the planning process. Good design is an
important aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good
planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for people.
7.2.2 Paragraph 124 of the NPPF (2019) states that the creation of high quality
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development
process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development, creates better Page 127 places in which to live and work and
helps make development acceptable to communities.
7.2.3 Paragraph 127 of the NPPF (2019) requires Local Planning Authorities to
ensure that developments will function well and add to the overall quality of the
area, not
just for the short term but over the lifetime of the development;
are
visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping and are sympathetic to local character and history,

Page 21

including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as
increased densities). New development shall also establish or maintain a strong
sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces, building types and
materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work
and visit; optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an
appropriate amount and mix of development (including green
and other
public space) and support local facilities and transport networks; and create
places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality
of life or community cohesion and resilience.
7.2.4 London Plan and Bromley Local Plan policies further reinforce the principles
of the NPPF setting out a clear rationale for high quality design.
7.2.5 Policies 3.4 and 3.5 of the London Plan reflect the same principles. Policy 3.4
specifies that Boroughs should take into account local context and character,
the design principles (in Chapter 7 of the Plan) and public transport capacity;
development should also optimise housing output for different types of
location within the relevant density range. This reflects paragraph 127 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, which requires development to respond
to local character and context and optimise the potential of sites.
7.2.6

The public realm is also an important aspect of any development as it
ensures that the development is integrated into and enhances the existing
character and use of the area. All residential and commercial development is
required by policy to contribute towards good design which extends to the
consideration of the public realm (London Plan Policy 7.5).

7.2.7 Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states that buildings, streets and open spaces
should provide a high quality design response that has regard to the pattern
and grain of the existing spaces and streets in orientation, scale, proportion
and mass; contributes to a positive relationship between the urban structure
and natural landscape features, including the underlying landform and
topography of an area; is human in scale, ensuring buildings create a positive
relationship with street level activity and people feel comfortable with their
surroundings; allows existing buildings and structures that make a positive
contribution to the character of a place to influence the future character of the
area; is informed by the surrounding historic environment.
7.2.8 Policy 7.6 states that buildings and structures should be of the highest
architectural quality, be of a proportion, composition, scale and orientation
that enhances, Page 128 activates and appropriately defines the public realm;
comprise details and materials that complement, not necessarily replicate, the
local architectural character; not cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of
surrounding land and buildings, particularly residential buildings, in relation to
privacy, overshadowing, wind and microclimate.

Page 22

7.2.9

Policies 6 and 9 of the Local Plan relate to residential extensions and
residential conversions respectively. The Council will expect all of the
following requirements to be demonstrated:





The scale, form and materials of construction should respect or
complement the host dwelling and be compatible with development in
the surrounding area
Compliance to minimum internal space standards for
dwellings/provision of accommodation of a high quality with safe and
secure access provided for prospective occupants
Design to ensure that the residential amenities of neighbouring
occupiers are not harmed
Parking resulting from the development is not to cause unsafe or
inconvenient highway conditions

7.2.10 Policy 8 of the Local Plan details that when considering applications for
new residential development, including extensions, the Council will normally
require for a proposal of two or more storeys in height, a minimum 1 metre
space from the side boundary of the site should be retained for the full
height and length of the building or where higher standards of separation
already exist within residential areas, proposals will be expected to provide a
more generous side space.
7.2.11 Policy 37 of the Local Plan details that all development proposals, including
extensions to existing buildings, will be expected to be of a high standard of
design and layout. To summarise, developments will be expected to meet all
of the following criteria where they are relevant; be imaginative and attractive
to look at, of a good architectural quality and should complement the
scale, proportion, form, layout and materials of adjacent buildings and
areas; positively contribute to the existing street scene and/or landscape
and respect important views, heritage assets, skylines, landmarks or
landscape features; create attractive settings; allow for adequate daylight
and sunlight to penetrate in and between buildings; respect the amenity of
occupiers of neighbouring buildings and those of future occupants; be of a
sustainable design and construction; accessible to all; secure; include;
suitable waste and refuse facilities and respect non designated heritage
assets.
7.2.12 The semi-detached character of the proposed properties with hipped roofs
would blend in with the character and appearance of both Copse Avenue and
Boleyn Gardens. The overall design differs slightly between the properties,
with Plot 9a being set slightly further forward than Plot 9. Plot 9a would
have a car port constructed to the side of the property and the existing
vehicular crossover would access for off-street parking for both properties.
7.2.13 Policy 8 states that a 1m side space as a minimum will generally be required
to be provided for residential proposals of two or more storeys, with more
generous side space to be provided where higher standards of separation
already exist within residential areas.

Page 23

7.2.14 The supporting text explains the purpose of the policy, stating that the policy
is required in order to safeguard the privacy and amenity of neighbouring
residents as well as to prevent a cramped appearance and unrelated terracing
from occurring. Owing to the splayed nature of the site a side space of
between 1.2m-4m would be maintained from the shared boundary with No.33
and a side space of between 1.9m-6m to the shared boundary with No.11.
7.2.15 In this instance, the proposal would adequate separation to the boundary, and
would not result in a cramped appearance, unrelated terracing or adverse
impact on neighbouring residential amenity. As such the proposal would not
result in the adverse impacts that Policy 8 seeks to prevent.
7.2.16 The materials used for the proposed extension would be acceptable, with the
planning application forms setting out that the properties would be finished
with brick, cream render, roof tiles and PVC glazed windows and doors.
7.3

Standard of residential accommodation – Acceptable

7.3.1 Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2016) Table 3.3 sets out the minimum space
standards for new development.
7.3.2 The London Plan makes clear that ninety percent of new housing should meet
Building Regulation requirement M4 (2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings'
and ten per cent of new housing should meet Building Regulation
requirement M4 (3) 'wheelchair user dwellings', i.e. is designed to be
wheelchair accessible, or easily adaptable for residents who are wheelchair
users. The proposal is also M4(2) compliant making it an accessible
and adaptable dwelling.
7.3.3 The Mayor's Housing SPG sets out guidance in respect of the standard
required for all new residential accommodation to supplement London Plan
policies. The standards apply to new build, conversion and change of use
proposals. Part 2 of the Housing SPG deals with the quality of residential
accommodation setting out standards for dwelling size, room layouts and
circulation space, storage facilities, floor to ceiling heights, outlook, daylight
and sunlight, external amenity space (including refuse and cycle storage
facilities) as well as core and access arrangements to reflect the
Governments National Technical Housing Standards. Each property meets
the required standard for a two storey three bedroom house.
7.3.4 Amenity space for housing should also generally be in a proportion and
configuration that is representative of the general context and pattern of
development in the vicinity. The proposed gardens serving the application
dwellings would measure between 6-8m in depth which is considered shallow
for the size of the properties but would meet the minimum standard required.
7.4

Highways – Acceptable

7.4.1 The NPPF recognises that transport policies have an important role to play in
facilitating sustainable development but also in contributing to wider

Page 24

sustainability and health objectives. The NPPF clearly states that transport
issues should be considered from the earliest stage of both plan making and
when formulating development proposals and development should only be
prevented or refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative
impacts of development are severe.
7.4.2 The NPPF states that all developments that will generate significant amounts
of movement should be required to provide a travel plan, and the application
should be supported by a transport statement or transport assessment so that
the likely impacts of the proposal can be assessed.
7.4.3 London Plan and Bromley Local Plan Policies encourage sustainable
transport modes whilst recognising the need for appropriate parking
provision. Car parking standards within the London Plan and Bromley
Local Plan should be used as a basis for assessment.
Car parking
7.4.4 The revised parking layout provides for 4 no. off-street parking spaces. The
Council's Street Trees and Highways Officer initially raised objections to the
new dropped kerb to Plot 9 on the basis that it would remove a mature street
tree and because of its corner location, without a safety audit, could have an
impact on highway safety . The agent has provided a revised plan which uses
the existing dropped kerb as an entry and exit point for both properties. One
car would be parked to the side of Plot 9a whilst the three other cars would
be parked
towards the front boundary of the site.
Cycle parking
7.4.5 Cycle storage for several bikes is shown to the side of each property.
7.5

Refuse – Acceptable

7.5.1 All new developments shall have adequate facilities for refuse and recycling.
The applicant has provided details of a refuse storage area to the front and side of
each property. A planning condition is recommended in this regard for full
details of the location, containment structure and capacity with any
permission granted.
7.5.2

On balance, the proposal is considered generally acceptable from a
highways perspective.

7.6

Neighbouring Amenity - Acceptable

7.6.1 Policy 37 of the Bromley Local Plan seeks to respect the amenity of occupiers
of neighbouring buildings and those of future occupants, providing healthy
environments and ensuring they are not harmed by noise and disturbance,
inadequate daylight, sunlight, privacy or by overshadowing.

Page 25

7.6.2 Policy 9 of the Bromley Local Plan also seeks to protect existing residential
occupiers from adverse impacts on residential amenities. Issues to consider
are the impact of a development proposal upon neighbouring properties by
way of overshadowing, loss of light, overbearing impact, overlooking, loss of
privacy and general noise and disturbance.
7.6.3 With the existing bungalow only being single storey the main impact will be the
increase in height, bulk and scale to the adjoining neighbours No. 11 and 33.
The proposed new properties will be located in roughly the same footprint of
the existing bungalow. The overall height of the two properties will mean that
the ridge height is less than the two neighbouring properties. The site will
have at least a 1m side space which will retain a degree of separation
between each property and its closest neighbour. Plot 9 will have a covered
path located to the side of the property whilst Plot 9a will have a carport with
a mansard roof. The proposed new walls and fencing to each flank boundary
will help to ensure a degree of privacy between each dwelling and their
neighbour. It is noted that no windows are proposed in the flank elevations at
first floor level.
7.6.4 Having regard to the scale, siting, separation distance, orientation, existing
boundary treatment of the developments, it is not considered they would
cause a significant loss of amenity with particular regard to outlook, privacy,
daylight or sunlight.
7.7

Sustainability - Acceptable

7.7.1 The NPPF requires Local Planning Authorities to adopt proactive strategies to
mitigate and adapt to climate change. London Plan and Draft Local Plan
Policies advocate the need for sustainable development. All new development
should address climate change and reduce carbon emissions.
7.7.2 Policy 5.3 Sustainable Design and Construction of the London Plan states that
the highest standards of sustainable design and construction should be
achieved in London to improve the environmental performance of new
developments and to adapt to the effects of climate change over their
lifetime.
7.7.3 Policy 5.2 Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions of the London Plan states that
development should make the fullest contribution to minimising carbon dioxide
emissions in accordance with the hierarchy; Be Lean: use less energy; Be
clean: supply energy efficiently and Be green: use renewable energy.
7.7.4 Local Plan Policy 123 states that all applications for development should
demonstrate how the principles of sustainable design and construction have
been taken into account.
7.7.5 An informative is recommended with any approval to ensure that the
development strives to achieve these objectives.

Page 26

7.8

Drainage – Acceptable

7.8.1 The development as proposed will result in one additional residential unit at the
site which will result in an increased demand for sewerage and sewerage
treatment.
7.8.2 Policy 5.13 of the London Plan requires developments to utilise sustainable
urban drainage systems (SUDS), unless there are practical reasons for not
doing so, and should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure
that surface water is managed as close to its source as possible in line
with the hierarchy in Policy 5.13.
7.8.3 Several neighbours have raised concerns about surface water flooding.
7.8.3 A Drainage Strategy has been submitted along with the application and
consultee comments were sought from the Council’s Drainage Officer,
Thames Water and the Environment Agency.
7.8.4 The applicant has stated that an extensive amount of time and costs have been
involved in investigating and planning a drainage strategy. Based on the
comments received from the Council’s Drainage Engineer, Thames Water
and Environment Agency no objections are raised from a drainage
perspective subject to several informatives and conditions.
7.9

CIL

7.9.1 The Mayor of London’s CIL is a material consideration. CIL is payable on this
application and the applicant has completed the relevant form.
8.

CONCLUSION

8.1

Having regard to the above, the development in the manner proposed is
acceptable in that it would preserve the character and appearance of the area
and not harm the amenities of neighbouring residential properties. Additionally,
the provision of one new dwelling would make a minor contribution towards
meeting the Council's housing targets, which also weighs in its favour.

8.2

Conditions are recommended to secure the development which are set out
below in this report.
Background papers referred to during production of this report comprise all
correspondence on the file ref 20/02367/FULL1

RECOMMENDATION: Application Permitted
SUMMARY OF CONDITIONS AND INFORMATIVES
Standard conditions
1. Standard time limit of 3 years
2. Standard compliance with approved plans
Prior to commencement conditions

Page 27

3. Surface Water Drainage
4. Construction Management Plan
5. Soft landscaping
6. Refuse storage
7. Cycle storage
8. Materials in accordance with the plans
Informatives
1. CIL
2. Street Naming and Numbering
3. Control of Pollution Act/Control of Pollution and Noise from Demolition and
Construction Sites
4. Sustainability
5. Surface and waste water
Any other planning condition(s) considered necessary by the Assistant Director of
Planning.

Page 28

9 Copse Avenue - 20/02367/FULL1
© Crown copyright and database rights 2020.
Ordnance Survey 100017661.
09 February 2021

1:1250

Page 29

This page is left intentionally blank

Agenda Item 4.2
Committee Date

18th February 2021

Address

77 Lynwood Grove
Orpington
BR6 0BQ

Application
Number
Ward
Proposal

20/04906/FULL6

Officer - Lawrence Stannard

Petts Wood And Knoll
Addition of a barn hip and 2 Velux windows to existing roof.
RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION

Applicant

Agent

Mr Bondi

Mr Mark Baker

77 Lynwood Grove
Orpington
BR6 0BQ

12 Swift Avenue
Finberry
Ashford
TN25 7GD

Reason for referral to
committee

Councillor call in
Call-In

Yes

RECOMMENDATION

Permission

KEY DESIGNATIONS

Biggin Hill Safeguarding Area
London City Airport Safeguarding
Area of Special Residential Character
Open Space Deficiency
Smoke Control SCA 4

Representation
summary



Total number of responses
Number in support
Number of objections

Neighbour notification letters were sent on the 15th December
2020
4
4
1

Page 31

1

SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION
 The development would not result in a harmful impact on the character of the
Area of Special Residential Character.
 The development would not result in a harmful impact on the appearance of the
Locally Listed host dwelling.
 The development would not adversely affect the amenities of neighbouring
residential properties

2

LOCATION

2.1

The application site hosts a two-storey detached dwelling located on the western side
of Lynwood Grove.

2.2

The site is located within The Knoll Area of Special Residential Character
(ASRC).

Figure 1: Site Location Plan

Page 32

3

PROPOSAL

3.1

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for the addition of a barn
hip and 2 Velux windows to the existing roof. The works proposed under this
application have been carried out alongside those previously approved under ref:
18/05522/FULL6.

3.2

The roof alterations proposed as part of t his application include the addition of a partial
hip to gable extension that would match the existing ridge height of the property,
increasing its width by approx. 1.4m

3.3

The proposed rooflights would include the addition of one to the front roofslope and one
to the rear roofslope.

Figure 2: Existing Front and Rear Elevations

Figure 3: Proposed Front and Rear Elevations

4

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.1

The application site has the following previous planning history.


84/03103/FUL – Single storey side extension – Permitted

Page 33







88/04386/FUL – First floor side extension - Permitted
00/03022/FULL1 – Single storey rear extension – Permitted
14/03480/FULL6 – Single storey front extension, single storey rear extensions,
new pitched roof to existing garage at side/rear, elevation alterations to rear
and new rooflights to rear and side – Permitted
15/01727/PLUD – Single storey rear extension – Permitted
18/05522/FULL6 – Single storey front/side extension, first floor side and rear
extension, loft conversion with rear dormer and roof lights - Permitted

5

CONSULTATION SUMMARY

A)

Statutory
No Statutory Consultations were received.

B)

Local Groups
No comments were received from Local Groups.

C)

Adjoining Occupiers
The following comments were received from adjoining occupiers.

Support Comments








No objections to it proceeding.
The application has been very mindfully drawn up with the immediate
neighbours & The Knoll Ward in mind.
Consideration has been taken to ensure the original character has been
maintained.
The end wall / barn end to the right is angled back towards the rear garden
and not in full view from the road.
Not viewable from my house directly or the road unless you walk half way
into the drive of No.77.
Will not result in the roof projecting higher or further forwards, and increase
in width would be modest, particularly in view of some of the large
extensions to other houses nearby.
As long as materials match the existing dwelling the alterations will not
appear excessive and certainly not out of keeping with the character of the
ASRC.

Objections
Design / ASRC impacts (Addressed in Para 7.1)



Additional Velux window to the front side of the property detracts from the
character of the road.
If a precedent is set for allowing multiple skylights on the front elevation this will
take away from the character of the road / ASRC.

Page 34






The barn hip enlarges what is already a very long dormer and roof line and is
not the most suitable design proposal when the property is viewed from the
front.
Removal of permitted development rights should be considered.
This should be reviewed at planning committee as the development looks to
have been completed retrospectively.
It is not clear that this is a retrospective application.

Neighbouring Amenity (Addressed in Para 7.2)


Front facing Velux windows will impact on the privacy of residents on the
opposing side of the road.

6

POLICIES AND GUIDANCE

6.1

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) sets
out that in considering and determining applications for planning permission the
local planning authority must have regard to:(a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application,
(b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and
(c) any other material considerations.

6.2

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) makes it
clear that any determination under the planning acts must be made in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

6.3

The development plan for Bromley comprises the London Plan (March 2016) and
the Bromley Local Plan (2019). The NPPF does not change the legal status of
the development plan.

6.4

An updated ‘Intend to Publish’ version of draft London Plan – entitled Publication
London Plan December 2020 - was published on 21 December 2020. This
version of the draft plan includes changes made by the Mayor in response to a
number of Directed Changes made by the SoS in March and December 2020.
The relevant documents are available on the Mayor’s website https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/planning/london-plan/new-londonplan/publication-london-plan

6.5

The draft new London Plan (December 2020) is a material consideration in the
determination of this planning application. Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that
decision makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to: (1) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan; (2) the extent to
which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies in the emerging plan;
and (3) the degree of consistency of relevant policies to the policies in the
Framework.

Page 35

6.6

The draft New London Plan is at a very advanced stage; in a Written Ministerial
Statement dated 15/12/2020, the SoS indicated that he expects to agree the
London Plan with the Mayor early in the new year (early 2021).

6.7

The London Assembly considered the draft new London Plan at a plenary
meeting on 6 February 2020 and did not exercise their power to veto the plan.

6.8

Prior to issuing further Directed Changes in December 2020, the SoS (in two
SoS call-in appeals in the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, appeal ref:
APP/C5690/W/18/3205926; and the London Borough of Hounslow, appeal ref:
APP/G6100/V/19/3226914) had established that the draft London Plan policies
are capable of having significant weight where they weren’t subject to Directed
Changes.

6.9

Considering this information against paragraph 48 of the NPPF, the draft new
London Plan (December 2020 ‘Intend to Publish’ version) is considered to have
very significant weight where there are no Directed Changes to policies; and
significant weight where there are Directed Changes to policies. Taking this into
account, the draft new London Plan policies should be used to determine this
planning application, alongside policies in the adopted Local Plan and adopted
London Plan. Where there is conflict between the policies in the draft new
London Plan and the policies in the adopted Development Plan, the draft new
London Plan should generally be given primacy although this may vary from case
to case.

6.10 Upon adoption of the new London Plan, it will become the most up-to-date
Development Plan Document for the London Borough of Bromley, and therefore,
in accordance with section 38(5) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004, “if to any extent a policy contained in a development plan for an area
conflicts with another policy in the development plan the conflict must be resolved
in favour of the policy which is contained in the last document to become part of
the development plan.”
6.11 The application falls to be determined in accordance with the following policies:6.12 National Policy Framework 2019
6.13 The London Plan
7.4 Local character
7.5 Public realm
7.6 Architecture
7.8 Heritage assets and archaeology
6.14 Draft London Plan
D1 London's form and characteristics
D4 Delivering good design
D5 Inclusive design

Page 36

6.15 Bromley Local Plan 2019
6 Residential Extensions
37 General Design of Development
44 Areas of Special Residential Character
123 Sustainable Design and Construction
6.16 Bromley Supplementary Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance 1 - General Design Principles
Supplementary Planning Guidance 2 - Residential Design Guidance
7

ASSESSMENT

7.1

Design – Layout, scale – Acceptable

7.1.1 The site is located within The Knoll Area of Special Residential Character
(ASRC). Policy 44 states that proposed developments within an ASRC will be
required to respect, enhance and strengthen their special and distinctive
qualities.
7.1.2 The Bromley Local Plan describes the areas of The Knoll ASRC, and sets out
the below description regarding Lynwood Grove;
“Lynwood Grove features a majority of white rendered, quirky and
asymmetrically composed houses featuring steep rooflines, arched
porches and pitch-roofed front elevations. The design of some of the
houses includes unusual features and detailing such as balconies,
octagonal, full circle and cased diamond panelled windows with shutters.
Properties feature a mix of open plan or landscaped front gardens
delimitated by low boundary walls or hedges. Creative use is often made
of planted boundary walls and hedges to delimitate side boundaries and
front gardens, as well as of paving materials for driveways. Variations in
the topography of the streets allow for gaps between houses combined
with variations in roof shapes and the level of the street allow for
interesting streetscape and perspectives as well as glimpses into rear
gardens. The street features landscaped sidewalk verges lined up with
the properties’ front gardens with a variety of trees species, including
mature trees. There is a landscaped roundabout at street mid-point.”
7.1.3 The proposed roof alteration would result in the addition of a partial hip to gable
extension which would increase the width of the existing ridge height by approx.
1.4m.
7.1.4 It is noted that there is a degree of variation in the side roof slopes of the
properties within this part of Lynwood Grove, with a mixture of hipped and
gabled roof designs.

Page 37

7.1.5 The partial hip to gable extension would not result in the roof projecting higher
or further forwards than the existing, and its increase in the width of the ridge
height would appear modest in the context of the existing roofslope.
7.1.6 The development includes one rooflight to the front and one to the rear, though
these are not considered to result in any significant harm to the appearance of
the host dwelling given their modest scale. Furthermore, it is noted that whilst
two larger rooflights have previously been granted consent in the front
roofslope, given the modest scale of the additional rooflight it is not considered
that this would result in an excessive number of rooflights or that this would
detract from the overall visual amenities of the ASRC.
7.1.7 The proposed materials would be in keeping with the host dwelling and it is
therefore considered the development would not detract from the appearance
of the host dwelling and appear harmful to the character and visual amenities
of the ASRC.
7.1.8 It is noted in the representations received that it is suggested permitted
development rights are removed as has been the case on other properties
within the street. However, the scale of the development is modest and would
not result in an overdevelopment of the site. It is therefore not considered
reasonable to remove permitted development rights on this basis.
7.2 Residential Amenity – Acceptable
7.2.1 The proposed development would result in some additional bulk to the roof
through the increase in height of the flank wall however it would not exceed the
height of the existing dwelling and the overall increase in bulk would be
relatively modest. It is therefore considered that it would not result in any
significant loss of light, outlook or privacy to the adjacent neighbour at No.79.
7.2.2 With regards to the impact on No.75 Lynwood Grove, the proposed alterations
would be set a significant distance from this shared boundary given their siting
to the northern side of the host dwelling, and the development would therefore
not impact detrimentally upon the amenities of this neighbour.
7.2.3 The scale of the rooflights would be modest and given their separation distance
and angle within the roofslope would not be considered to provide any
significant opportunities for overlooking towards nearby neighbours including
those opposite.
7.2.4 Having regard to the scale and siting of the development, it is not considered
that a significant loss of amenity with particular regard to light, outlook, prospect
and privacy would arise.
8
8.1

CONCLUSION
Having regard to the above, the development in the manner proposed is
considered acceptable as it would not result in any unacceptable impact upon

Page 38

the amenities of neighbouring residents or the character and visual amenities of
The Knoll ASRC.
8.2

Background papers referred to during production of this report comprise all
correspondence on the files set out in the Planning History section above,
excluding exempt information.

Page 39

This page is left intentionally blank

77 Lynwood Grove - 20/04906/FULL6
© Crown copyright and database rights 2020.
Ordnance Survey 100017661.
09 February 2021

1:1250

Page 41

This page is left intentionally blank

